
 

Vale of White Horse District Councils 
Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee agenda - Thursday, 4 August 2022 

 Page 1 

Agenda 

 
Contact: Steven Corrigan 
Telephone: 07717 274704   
Email: steven.corrigan@southandvale.gov.uk  
Date: 27 July 2022 
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

 

 

A meeting of the  

Community Governance and Electoral 

Issues Committee 

 
will be held on Thursday 4 August 2022 at 7.00 pm  
First Floor Meeting Space, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, Milton,  
OX14 4SB 
 
To watch this virtual meeting, follow this link to the council’s YouTube channel.   
 
 

Members of the Committee: 
Councillors: 
Ron Batstone (Chair) 
Sarah Medley (Vice-Chair) 
Paul Barrow 
 

Alison Jenner 
Mike Pighills 
Janet Shelley 

Substitutes: 
Councillors: 
Simon Howell Patrick O’Leary 
Diana Lugova Max Thompson 
Ben Mabbett  
Robert Maddison 
 

Elaine Ware 
Richard Webber 

 

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These 
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any 
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the 
officer named on this agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 
 
Patrick Arran 
Head of Legal and Democratic 

mailto:steven.corrigan@southandvale.gov.uk
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/
https://www.youtube.com/c/SouthandValeCommitteeMeetings


 

Vale of White Horse District Councils 
Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee agenda - Thursday, 4 August 2022 

 Page 2 

Agenda 

 

Open to the Public including the Press 
 

1. Apologies for absence  
  
To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.   
 

2. Minutes  
(Pages 3 - 8)  
  
To adopt and sign as a correct record the Community Governance minutes of the meeting 
held on 26 May 2022.  
 

3. Declarations of interest  
  
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests and any conflicts of interest 
in respect of items on the agenda for this meeting.    
 

4. Urgent business and chairman's announcements  
  
To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be considered 
as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the matters urgent, 
and to receive any announcements from the chairman.   
 

5. Public participation  
  
To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have registered to 
speak.   
 

6. Community Governance Review - Harwell East Proposals  
(Pages 9 - 13)  
  
To consider the report of the head of legal and democratic. 
 



 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee minutes  

Thursday, 26 May 2022  CG.1 

Minutes 

of a meeting of the 

Community Governance 

and Electoral Issues 

Committee 

 

 
held on Thursday 26 May 2022 at 7.00 pm 
at 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, OX14 4SB  
 
 

Open to the public, including the press 
 

Present in the meeting room:  
Committee members: Councillors Ron Batstone (Chair), Sarah Medley (Vice-Chair), 
Paul Barrow, Alison Jenner, Mike Pighills and Janet Shelley 
Officers: Susan Baker (Elections Team Leader), Steven Corrigan (Democratic Services 
Manager), Steve Culliford (Demcratic Services Team Leader), and Jordan Kennedy 
(Elections Officer) 
 
Remote attendance: 
Officers: Chris McMullin (Elections Officer)  
Guests: Councillor Eric Batts 
 
Number of members of the public: 7 
 

 

1. Apologies for absence  
 
None 
 

2. Minutes  
 
RESOLVED: to adopt as a correct record the minutes of the committee meeting held on 7 
March 2022 and agree that the Chair signs them as such.   
 

3. Declarations of interest  
 
None 
 

4. Urgent business and chair's announcements  
 
None 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee minutes  

Thursday, 26 May 2022  CG.2 

 
 

5. Community Governance Review - Covering Report  
 
The committee considered the head of legal and democratic’s report.  This invited the 
committee to agree a revised timetable for the community governance reviews and to 
agree draft recommendations for each review.   
 
The committee agreed that to allow officers sufficient time to prepare the consultation 
documents and to allow for an extended consultation period, the consultation on the draft 
proposals should run until 29 July 2022.  The aim was for the committee to agree final 
proposals at a meeting to be arranged in early September 2022.  The committee was 
content with this revised timetable.   
 
The committee then proceeded to receive an overview of the community governance 
review process to date.  The committee recalled that at its meeting on 7 March 2022, 
terms of reference had been agreed for a community governance review in response to 
matters submitted by parish councils.   
 
Eight proposals had been received from parish councils.  An initial engagement period ran 
from 31 March to 29 April 2022 on the proposed changes.  A summary of the engagement 
responses for each proposal was now presented to the committee for consideration.  The 
summaries contained recommendations for each review.  The justification for each 
recommendation was based on the assessment criteria contained within the terms of 
reference and informed by the engagement responses.  However, one of the assessment 
criteria was to take into account “views expressed in relation to any changes, particularly 
from those people directly affected”.  This meant that review proposals should only be 
evaluated once the council had consulted on its draft proposals.   
 
The committee agreed to consider submissions from the public participation section of the 
agenda (minute 6 below refers), followed by consideration of each review summary in turn 
(see minutes 7 to 14 below).   
 
RESOLVED: to agree the revised timetable for the community governance reviews so that 
the consultation on the draft proposals will run until 29 July 2022, with the committee 
agreeing final proposals at a meeting to be arranged in early September 2022.   
 

6. Public participation  
 
Seven members of the public had registered to speak at the meeting.   
 
1. Donna Foster made a statement on behalf of Cumnor Parish Council, objecting to the 

proposal from Sunningwell Parish Council to transfer Chilswell properties from 
Cumnor parish to Sunningwell parish.   
 

2. Yvonne Constance, an Oxfordshire County Councillor, made a statement supporting 
East Challow Parish Council.  Councillor Constance questioned why Grove Parish 
Council was proposing to transfer Grove Technology Park from East Challow parish 
into Grove parish and could see no reason to do this.   

 

Page 4



 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee minutes  

Thursday, 26 May 2022  CG.3 

3. Paul Barrow, a Vale of White Horse District Councillor and an East Challow Parish 
Councillor, made a statement representing East Challow Parish Council.  He believed 
that the proposal by Grove Parish Council to transfer Grove Technology Park out of 
East Challow parish and into Grove parish was unnecessary.   

 
4. Kate O’Donovan, representing the Boars Hill Association, made a statement in 

support of the proposal by Sunningwell Parish Council to transfer Boars Hill into 
Sunningwell parish.  However, the Association did not support Boars Hill being added 
to Sunningwell’s parish name.   

 
5. Ian Bristow, the chair of Wootton Parish Council, made a statement objecting to the 

proposal by Sunningwell Parish Council to transfer Boars Hill into Sunningwell parish.  
He believed that Boars Hill was an integral part of Wootton and welcomed anyone 
from Boars Hill to join Wootton Parish Council as there were vacancies on the 
council.   

 
6. Virginia Grant, the chair of Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor Parish Council, made 

a statement in support of the parish council’s proposal to transfer the land east of 
Kingston Bagpuize into its parish.  A planning application for a large housing 
development was pending determination.  If approved, this new development would 
be adjacent to Kingston Bagpuize, which would be the primary source of services for 
its new residents.   

 
7. Eric Batts, the local ward district councillor for Kingston Bagpuize, made a statement 

in support of the parish council’s proposal to transfer the land east of Kingston 
Bagpuize into its parish.  He suggested that the approval could be conditional on 
planning permission being achieved for the new development on the site.   

 
The committee chair thanked the speakers for their statements.   

 
The committee also noted that Fyfield and Tubney Parish Council had submitted a written 
statement as it was unable to send a representative to the committee meeting.  The written 
statement objected to the proposal to transfer land into Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor 
parish.  The committee noted the written statement.   
 

7. Community Governance Review - Grove  
 
The committee considered a proposal to de-ward Grove Parish Council.  This effectively 
would result in the parish council consisting of 16 councillors without being split into Grove 
North and Grove South wards.  The committee noted that it was now within this council’s 
remit to approve such a change.  The committee agreed that the parish council’s proposal 
should be the subject of public consultation.   
 
RESOLVED: to consult on a proposal to de-ward Grove Parish Council.   

 
8. Community Governance Review - Grove Business Park  
 
Councillors Ron Batstone and Paul Barrow, local ward district councillors for the Grove 
and East Challow parishes respectively, did not take part in the consideration or voting on 
this review proposal.   
 

Page 5



 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee minutes  

Thursday, 26 May 2022  CG.4 

The committee considered a proposal from Grove Parish Council to amend the boundary 
of Grove parish to include Grove Business Park, which was currently within East Challow 
parish.   
 
The committee concurred with the officer’s report that the council should consult on a 
proposal not to change the boundary.   
 
RESOLVED: to consult on a proposal not to include Grove Business Park within Grove 
parish.   
 

9. Community Governance Review - Kingston Bagpuize with 
Southmoor and Fyfield and Tubney  

 
The committee considered a proposal from Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor Parish 
Council.  The proposal was to amend the parish boundary east of Kingston Bagpuize with 
Southmoor to include land currently in Fyfield and Tubney parish.  The reason behind the 
proposal was that a planning application for a large residential development had been 
submitted and was pending determination by the district council’s Planning Committee.  If 
approved, the new development would be adjacent to the Kingston Bagpuize boundary 
and its new residents would look primarily to Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor for 
services.   
 
The committee explored options relating to this proposal but agreed with officer advice that 
the proposal should not be made conditional on achieving planning permission, as this 
was not part of the criteria for assessing community governance reviews.  The committee 
considered that the council should consult on a proposal not to change the boundary.   
 
RESOLVED: to consult on a proposal to make no change to the current boundary between 
Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor parish and Fyfield and Tubney parish.   
 

10. Community Governance Review - North Hinksey  
 
The committee considered a proposal from North Hinksey Parish Council to change the 
name of the council to include the name Botley, and to introduce an alternative style of 
parish so that it became a community council.  The parish council would be changing its 
name from North Hinksey Parish Council to Botley and North Hinksey Community Council.   
 
The committee concurred with the officer’s recommendation that the proposal should be 
subject to consultation.   
 
RESOLVED: to consult on a proposal to introduce an alternative style of parish and 
rename North Hinksey Parish Council to Botley and North Hinksey Community Council.   
 

11. Community Governance Review - Kennington and South Hinksey  
 
The committee considered a proposal from South Hinksey Parish Council to amend the 
parish boundary south of South Hinksey to include the former Westwood Hotel site, 
currently in Kennington parish.   
 
The committee agreed that the council should consult on a proposal not to change the 
boundary.   

Page 6



 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee minutes  

Thursday, 26 May 2022  CG.5 

 
RESOLVED: to consult on a proposal to make no change to the current boundary between 
South Hinksey and Kennington parishes.   
 

12. Community Governance Review - Sunningwell  
 
The committee considered a proposal from Sunningwell Parish Council to amend the 
parish boundary to include the area of Boars Hill currently in Wootton and Cumnor 
parishes, and to amend the parish name to reflect the change.   
 
The officer’s report recommended (1) consulting on a proposal to make no change to the 
boundary, and (2) to consider undertaking a community governance review of the wider 
area (Sunningwell, Wootton, Cumnor, Kennington, Radley and South Hinksey) following 
the elections in May 2023 to include consideration of a new parish for Boars Hill.   
 
The committee, noting the differing views on this proposal, believed that a proposal to 
make no change to the parish boundary should be subject to formal public consultation.  
The committee also believed that, following the consultation and pending the outcome on 
the committee’s decision in the autumn, the council should also consider undertaking a 
community governance review of the wider area following the elections in May 2023.   
 
RESOLVED: to  
 
(a) consult on a proposal to make no change to the current boundary between 

Sunningwell, Cumnor and Wootton parishes; and   
 
(b) consider undertaking a community governance review of the wider area 

(Sunningwell, Wootton, Cumnor, Kennington, Radley and South Hinksey) following 
the elections in May 2023 to include consideration of a new parish for Boars Hill.   

 

13. Community Governance Review - Uffington  
 
The committee considered a proposal from Uffington Parish Council to increase the 
number of councillors from six to seven.  The committee supported the recommendation to 
consult on this proposal.   
 
RESOLVED: to consult on a proposal to increase the number of councillors for Uffington 
Parish Council to seven.   
 

14. Community Governance Review - Wootton  
 
The committee considered a proposal from Wootton Parish Council to review its parish 
name to reflect the settlement of Boars Hill.   
 
The committee noted that this proposal related to a separate proposal from Sunningwell 
Parish Council regarding Boars Hill.  The committee was concerned that running two 
consultations on the two Boars Hill proposals would be confusing for the public, so to avoid 
this the two proposals should be amalgamated into one consultation.  Officers confirmed 
that they would work with the council’s engagement team to achieve this.  This should help 
inform the committee’s consideration of the proposals in the autumn.   
 

Page 7



 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee minutes  

Thursday, 26 May 2022  CG.6 

RESOLVED: to consult on a proposal to rename Wootton Parish Council to Wootton and 
Boars Hill Parish Council.   
 
 
 
 
The meeting closed at 8.10 pm 
 
 
 
Chair:       Date: 

Page 8



 
1 

 

Community Governance and 

Electoral Issues Committee 
 

  
Report of Head of Legal and Democratic 

Author: Steven Corrigan 

Telephone: 07717 274704 

E-mail: steven.corrigan@southandvale.gov.uk 

DATE: 4 August 2022 

 

 
 
 

Community Governance Review 

Harwell East Proposals 

Recommendation(s): that subject to consultation 

1. the new name of the council be Harwell East Parish Council; 

2. the effective date for the new council will be 1 April 2023, with elections for 
the new council to take place in May 2023; 

3. the council should return eight parish councillors; 

4. the council should not be warded. 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

1. To agree proposals for the governance arrangements for Harwell East parish for 
consultation.  

Corporate Objectives  

2. Community governance reviews contribute to the council’s corporate objectives of 
working in partnership and working in an open and inclusive way. 

Background 

3. At its meeting on 16 July 2014 Council agreed the following: 

To create a new parish of Harwell East comprising that part of Harwell parish that lies 
to the east of the A34, with the exception of land lying to the north of the London-

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



 
2 

 

Bristol railway line, the timing of the creation of the new parish to be a matter for the 
Community Governance Review Committee to determine. 

4. This committee agreed, at its meeting on 23 October 2017, to progress the matter 
for implementation at the May 2019 elections. However, at its meeting on 21 June 
2018, the committee considered the matter further and agreed to defer the creation 
of the new parish until the district-wide review of parish governance arrangements 
following the May 2019 elections to allow for the community to grow and establish 
an identity and allow for further details regarding any unitary proposals for 
Oxfordshire discussed at that time. A map of the new parish is attached. 

5. Having previously agreed to establish a new parish the next stage in the process is 
to agree the electoral arrangements namely: 

 Whether the new parish should have a parish council or an alternative status or 
style of council (community, neighbourhood or village). 

 The ordinary year of elections. 

 The council size (number of councillors). 

 Whether the parish should be divided into wards. 

Style of governance/name of council 

6. The name of a parish refers to the geographical name of the area concerned. As 
the new parish has an electorate of over 1,000 electors a council must be created. 
As to the name of a council, legislation offers a choice of alternative styles for a 
parish: parish council, community council, neighbourhood council or village council. 
Officers propose that the new parish has a parish council and be named Harwell 
East Parish Council.   

Ordinary year of election 

7. There is a statutory requirement for ordinary elections of the whole council to take 
place every four years, which must be coterminous with the election of district 
councillors for that area. With elections scheduled for May 2023 officers propose 
that councillors are elected to the new council in May 2023. 

Council size  

8. As part of the community governance the committee is required to consider the 
number of councillors for the new parish council. 

9. In terms of council size there are no statutory guidelines on the number of 
councillors elected apart from a minimum of five. There is a wide variation of 
council size between parish councils which appears to be influenced by population. 
Research by the Aston Business School Parish and Town Councils in England 
found that that the typical parish council representing less than 500 people had 
between five and eight councillors; those between 501 and 2,500 had six to 12 
councillors; and those between 2,501 and 10,000 had nine to 16 councillors. 
Most parish councils with a population of between 10,001 and 20,000 had between 
13 and 27 councillors, while almost all councils representing a population of over 
20,000 had between 13 and 31 councillors. This broadly reflects the council size 

Page 10



 
3 

 

range set out in the National Association of Local Councils Circular 1126 (see table 
below) which suggests that the minimum number of councillors for any parish 
should be seven and the maximum 25.  

Electors  Councillors  Electors  Councillors 

Up to 900  7  10,400  17 

1,400  8  11,900  18 

2,000  9  13,500  19 

2,700  10  15,200  20 

3,500  11  17,000  21 

4,400  12  18,900  22 

5,400  13  20,900  23 

6,500  14  23,000  24 

7,700  15  45,000  25 

9,000  16   

 

10. The current electorate for the area of Harwell East is approximately 1400. Officers 
therefore propose a council size of eight councillors.   

Parish warding  

11. In respect of the question of warding the parish, the committee must consider the 
following when deciding to recommend that a parish should, or should not, be 
divided into wards for the purposes of electing councillors:  

 Whether the number, or distribution, of the local government 
electors for the parish would make a single election of councillors 
impracticable or inconvenient; 
 

 whether it is desirable that any area or areas of the parish should 
be separately represented on the council. For example, this could be the case 
where in rural areas a parish covers a number of villages and communities. 

12. Officers do not consider that the number and distribution of local government 
electors would make a single election of councillors impracticable or inconvenient 
for a single ward or that the area includes different areas that should be separately 
represented.    

Financial Implications 

13. Under the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, local 
authorities have responsibility for undertaking community governance reviews. The 
process is prescribed and involves officer time and other associated costs, such as 
consultation, postage and printing. These costs will be met from within existing 
budgets. 

Legal Implications 

14. The Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee has delegated 
authority to deal with all matters relating to parish community governance reviews. 

Page 11



 
4 

 

15. In carrying out a community governance review the council must follow the 
requirements laid down in the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health 
Act 2007.  It must also pay heed to the joint guidance on community governance 
reviews published by the Communities and Local Government Department and 
LGBC. 

16. The council will implement any changes by making a reorganisation of community 
governance order.  

Climate and Ecological Emergencies Implications 

17. There are no implications arising from this report. 

Risks and Options 

18. There is a risk that someone could challenge the outcome of a particular review 
item through judicial review. Council officers will mitigate against this by ensuring 
that at all times the council follows the requirements laid down in the 2007 Act and 
guidance. 

Conclusion 

19. In 2014 Council agreed to establish a new parish of Harwell East. Council is now 
invited to proceed with the creation of the parish and agree proposals for the 
governance arrangements for consultation. 

 

Background Papers: None 

 

 

 

Page 12



Parishes (Vale)
Proposed Boundary
Change
Area Affected

° 1:22,500

0 500 1,000
Metres

June 2018

Enlarged
Area

New parish of
Harwell East

© Crown copyright and database rights 2018 
Ordnance Survey 100019525

Harwell

Harwell
East

P
age 13


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Community Governance Review - Harwell East Proposals
	Harwell East map


